
 
 

Chair: Shana Hazan Vice Chair: Dolores Canizales 

Commissioners: Olympia Beltran, Rickie Brown, Faye Detsky-Weil, Tammy Gillies, Godwin Higa, Breanne 

Mode, Kathleen Moehlig, Nicole Murray Ramirez, April Purcell, Jeffrey Razi-Jafari, Kristin Rizzo, Tootie 

Thomas, Liliana Zaragoza  

Commission Liaison: Farhat Popal 

 

This meeting will only be held via Zoom Webinar here: 

Zoom 
Commissioner comment will be available by opening your chat window and typing “speak.”  

If you are calling in by phone, dial *9 to raise your hand; when you are called upon by the last 4 digits 
of your phone number, press *6 to unmute yourself to speak. 

 

COMMISSION MEETING AGENDA 

Wednesday, April 21, 2021 

5:30 - 7:30 p.m. PT 

Topic Purpose Resources Facilitator Time 

I. Call to Order, Roll Call 
• Secretary Action  Chair Hazan 5:30 

II. Non-agenda Public 
Comment Information  Chair Hazan 5:35 

III. Approval of Minutes from 
February Meeting 
• Feb. Action Item 

Report 

Action February Meeting Minutes Chair Hazan 5:45 

IV. Anti-API Extremism 
Presentation Action 

(1) API Coalition Op Ed & 
Resources, Local Attack on 
Filipina Elder – 10 News 
Story, National Trend, City 
Resolution & 
Recommendations, API 
Coalition Recommendations  

(2) Letter to HRC   

(1) Samuel Tsoi; 
Kent Lee 

(2) Tommy Hough 
5:50 

V. Hate Crimes/Violent 
Extremism Report Action 

https://www.sandiego.gov/blog/
stopping-hate-crimes-and-
incidents-0  

Commissioner Gillies 6:20 

https://sandiego.zoomgov.com/j/1611368868
https://www.sandiegouniontribune.com/opinion/commentary/story/2021-02-12/opinion-a-year-into-the-pandemic-asian-pacific-islanders-still-face-racism-and-xenophobia-it-must-end?fbclid=IwAR2l-6eeFbc9zfYVgru-aMUp9FE2dMbWZzqBpDPU-EOD896MWHkvoIqbCSA
https://pacarts.org/sdapicoalition/api-resources/
https://www.10news.com/news/local-news/attack-on-elderly-filipino-woman-on-trolley?fbclid=IwAR2l-6eeFbc9zfYVgru-aMUp9FE2dMbWZzqBpDPU-EOD896MWHkvoIqbCSA
https://www.10news.com/news/local-news/attack-on-elderly-filipino-woman-on-trolley?fbclid=IwAR2l-6eeFbc9zfYVgru-aMUp9FE2dMbWZzqBpDPU-EOD896MWHkvoIqbCSA
https://www.sandiego.gov/human-relations/stop-aapi-hate
https://www.sandiego.gov/human-relations/stop-aapi-hate
https://www.sandiego.gov/blog/stopping-hate-crimes-and-incidents-0
https://www.sandiego.gov/blog/stopping-hate-crimes-and-incidents-0
https://www.sandiego.gov/blog/stopping-hate-crimes-and-incidents-0


 
 

 

Next Meeting: May 19, 2021, 5:30 - 7:30 p.m. PST 

 

VI. Mayor’s Office/Public 
Official Comment 
• HRC Appointments 
• Youth Commissioner 

Recruitment 
• HRC Executive 

Director 

Information  Mathew Gordon 6:30 

VII. Office of Race & Equity  
• Black Advisory Group 
• Mayor’s 

Empowerment Policy 
Plan for San Diego’s 
Black Community 

Information 

Recruitment Brochure; Mayor 
Gloria’s Empowerment Policy 
Plan for San Diego’s Black 
Community 

Matthew Griffith 6:40 

VIII. Revised Bylaws Update Information  
Commissioner 
Detsky-Weil, Vice 
Chair Canizales 

6:50 

IX. External Relations 
• Communications Plan 
• Awards and 

Commendations 
• Business Cards 

Information  Vice Chair Canizales 7:00 

X. Global Affairs and 
Immigrant Affairs Report Information  Farhat Popal 7:10 

XI. Chair’s Report Information HRC Letter Condemning AAPI 
Killings in Georgia Chair Hazan 7:15 

XII. Commissioner Reports 
• Covid-19 Vaccine 

Access Report 
Information  

Commissioner 
Beltran, 
Commissioner Purcell 

7:25 

XIII. Adjournment Action  Chair Hazan 7:30 



1 
 

 
 
 

Human Relations Commission Meeting 
Minutes 

Wednesday, February 17, 2021 
5:30 p.m. PT – 7:30 p.m. PT 

 
 

Call to Order | View Here 
The Human Relations Commission meeting was called to order by Commission Chair Hazan at 
5:30 p.m. PT. 
 
Roll Call | View Here [go to 4:30] 

• Commissioners present: Shana Hazan, Dolores Canizales, Tootie Thomas, Faye Detsky-
Weil, Kristin Rizzo, Godwin Higa, Nicole Murray-Ramirez, Olympia Beltran, Tammy 
Gillies, Kathleen Moelhig, Jeffrey Razi-Jafari, Breanne Mode, April Purcell 

• Commissioners absent: None 
• City staff: Farhat Popal 

 
Non-agenda Public Comment | None 
 
Mayor’s Office/Public Official Comment | View Here [go to 8:20] 
HRC Appointments Update | Chair Hazan 
 
Office of Race & Equity Update | View Here [go to 15:00] 
Jessica Lawrence, Director of Policy & Council Affairs, Mayor’s Office 
Liz Barat, Leadership & Succession Planning Manager, Human Resources 
 
Global Affairs and Immigrant Affairs Report | View Here [go to 24:55] 
Farhat Popal, Immigrant Affairs Manager 
 
Action: Office of Child & Youth Success Concept Paper | View Here [go to 28:56] 
Commissioners approved drafting of a letter by Chair Hazan supporting an Office of Child & 
Youth Success to be sent to the Mayor. 
 
Action: Approval of Minutes from January 17, 2021 Meeting | View Here [go to 38:03] 
A motion to approve the minutes was made and passed.  
 
Action: Violent Extremism Report | View Here [go to 40:54] 
Commissioners approved template letter/statement for responding to hate crimes/extremism, 
with amendments. 
 
 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=BC57PTM62rY&t=1s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=BC57PTM62rY&t=1s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=BC57PTM62rY&t=1s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=BC57PTM62rY&t=1s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=BC57PTM62rY&t=1s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=BC57PTM62rY&t=1s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=BC57PTM62rY&t=1s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=BC57PTM62rY&t=1s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=BC57PTM62rY&t=1s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=BC57PTM62rY&t=1s


2 
 

Serra High School Name Update | View Here [go to 1:11:43] 
Chair Hazan  
Commissioner Beltran 
Commissioner Higa 
 
Bylaws Update | View Here [go to 1:23:28] 
Commissioner Detsky-Weil 
 
Chair’s Reports | View Here [go to 1:29:13] 
Chair Hazan 
 
Commissioner Reports | View Here [go to 1:35:08] 
 
Action: Adjournment  
A motion to adjourn the meeting was made and passed at 7:29 p.m. PT. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=BC57PTM62rY&t=1s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=BC57PTM62rY&t=1s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=BC57PTM62rY&t=1s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=BC57PTM62rY&t=1s


San Diego's Spike In Hate Crimes Against Asian Americans Mirrors National Trend | KPBS

https://www.kpbs.org/...utm_medium=email&utm_term=0_c2357fd0a3-872493ac1a-84200729&goal=0_c2357fd0a3-872493ac1a-84200729[3/5/2021 11:37:28 AM]

WATCH LIVE: San Diego Mayor Todd Gloria announcing plans to wind down Operation
Shelter To Home at the Convention Center 

LATEST UPDATES: Tracking COVID-19 | Vaccines | Racial Justice

San Diego’s Spike In Hate Crimes Against Asian Americans
Mirrors National Trend

Thursday, March 4, 2021
By Claire Trageser

PHOTO BY MATTHEW BOWLER

San Diego County has not been spared from the nationwide spike in racist attacks against members
of Asian and Pacific Islander communities during the pandemic, records reviewed by KPBS show.

In 2020, the San Diego County District Attorney’s Office filed charges in three cases of hate crimes
against Asian Americans and has documented several other racist incidents. Also in 2020, the

(Posted 03/5/21 at 10:46 a.m.)

Above: Sculptured lions guard the front of Jasmine Seafood Restaurant on Convoy Street. Aug. 25, 2016.

 LISTEN WATCH

https://www.kpbs.org/
https://www.kpbs.org/
https://www.kpbs.org/news/coronavirus/
https://www.kpbs.org/news/san-diego-covid-19-coronavirus-vaccines/
https://www.kpbs.org/news/san-diego-protests-racial-injustice-police-violence/
https://www.kpbs.org/staff/claire-trageser/
https://www.kpbs.org/staff/matthew-bowler/
https://www.pledgecart.org/pledgeCart3/?campaign=FAE05F9D-EA90-48F0-ADD2-221C8B9FA2D8&source=WTW200001001
https://www.pledgecart.org/pledgeCart3/?campaign=FAE05F9D-EA90-48F0-ADD2-221C8B9FA2D8&source=WTW200001001
https://www.kpbs.org/
javascript:void(0)
javascript:void(0)
javascript:void(0)
javascript:void(0)
https://www.pledgecart.org/pledgeCart3/?campaign=C24EAB93-2727-4548-A562-D29417E16440&source=


San Diego's Spike In Hate Crimes Against Asian Americans Mirrors National Trend | KPBS

https://www.kpbs.org/...utm_medium=email&utm_term=0_c2357fd0a3-872493ac1a-84200729&goal=0_c2357fd0a3-872493ac1a-84200729[3/5/2021 11:37:28 AM]

Aired 3/5/21 on KPBS News

Listen to this story by Claire Trageser.

California-based advocacy organization Stop AAPI Hate collected 29 reports of racist incidents
against Asian Americans and Pacific Islanders in San Diego County.

The three alleged hate crimes in 2020 is “three more than we’ve had in the last couple years,” said
District Attorney Summer Stephan. “That’s what’s disturbing, is we weren’t seeing that type of hate
crime directed toward our Asian community until COVID in 2020.”

In May 2020, Stephan’s office set up a hotline where people could call or make online reports of
hate crimes and racist incidents. She said they received 110 reports to the hotline, and 10 were
reports about incidents directed toward people of Asian descent.

However, Stephan did not file hate crime charges in one high-profile incident in February in which a
man allegedly punched an elderly Filipino woman on the trolley. Instead, her office charged
the man with elder abuse, which drew the ire of community advocates.

https://www.kpbs.org/news/
https://www.kpbs.org/news/
https://www.kpbs.org/news/
https://stopaapihate.org/reportsreleases/
https://www.sdcda.org/helping/hate-crimes
https://www.10news.com/news/local-news/attack-on-elderly-filipino-woman-on-trolley
https://www.kpbs.org/news/evening-edition
https://www.kpbs.org/news/evening-edition


San Diego's Spike In Hate Crimes Against Asian Americans Mirrors National Trend | KPBS

https://www.kpbs.org/...utm_medium=email&utm_term=0_c2357fd0a3-872493ac1a-84200729&goal=0_c2357fd0a3-872493ac1a-84200729[3/5/2021 11:37:28 AM]

Stephan defended the decision, saying there wasn’t enough evidence for a hate crime charge.

“What happened is atrocious, but for it to be a hate crime, you have to show motivated bias against a
protected group, race, gender, sexual orientation, religion, or disability,” she said. “We pursued
looking for hate crime intent, and it doesn't mean it was not there, but we have to look for provable
evidence.”

Stephan said most of the 2020 reports don’t meet the strict legal definition of hate crimes, but they
help her office prosecute other crimes.

RELATED: Community Advocates Argue For Better Tracking of Asian-American Hate
Crimes

“There’s at least one incident where someone reported something that’s less than a crime, but as we
were able to do open source intelligence investigations, cyber investigations, we were able to see that
this person was preparing for violence, they were amassing weapons and we were able to work with
law enforcement to interrupt that cycle of violence,” she said.

The 29 San Diego County incidents reported to Stop AAPI Hate mirror a national trend toward more
hate crimes and racist incidents against Asian Americans. The group’s records show 2,808 firsthand
accounts of anti-Asian hate from 47 states and the District of Columbia between the middle of March
2020, when the pandemic set in, and the end of December.

“The trends are horrific,” said Russel Jeung, a professor in San Francisco State University’s Asian-
American Studies Department who co-founded the Stop AAPI Hate group. “The attacks were pretty
traumatizing, because it’s unexpected that adults would bully others, that they would use such racial
slurs and epithets.”

He said attacks seem to only be escalating.

“Where they actually push and shove the elderly and actually kill them,” he said. “It’s scary for me to
see how hateful America has become or maybe has always been.”

However, Jeung said, the group did not collect the reports because they want increased criminal
prosecutions. Instead, they are collecting evidence in the hopes that it will lead to changing civil
rights policies to better protect Asian Americans and restorative justice programs.

“Restorative justice doesn’t criminalize the perpetrator, but tries to educate him or her and tries to
restore the relationship between the perpetrator and the victim,” he said.

Community outreach

Among the group’s efforts have been what they call “Chinatown strolls” in San Francisco and

https://www.kpbs.org/news/2021/feb/23/community-advocates-argue-better-tracking-asian-am/
https://www.kpbs.org/news/2021/feb/23/community-advocates-argue-better-tracking-asian-am/


San Diego's Spike In Hate Crimes Against Asian Americans Mirrors National Trend | KPBS

https://www.kpbs.org/...utm_medium=email&utm_term=0_c2357fd0a3-872493ac1a-84200729&goal=0_c2357fd0a3-872493ac1a-84200729[3/5/2021 11:37:28 AM]

Oakland, where people go visit businesses, which are meant to create a sense of community safety.

“We don’t need more patrols or more policing or more surveillance, we need more people to create a
welcoming and safe environment,” Jeung said.

San Diego City Councilman Chris Cate did something similar in the Convoy area during the start of
the pandemic.

“We wanted to showcase the AAPI community, and to show support that it was OK, you can continue
to visit your favorite restaurants and businesses,” Cate said.

Cate’s office has also received reports of racist incidents. They include “instances where someone was
at a restaurant or gas station and was told go back to your country, go home, you don’t belong here,”
he said.

Stephan said hate crimes must be pursued vigorously because they tear the fabric of communities in
all corners of the county.

“It doesn’t just affect that person, but when there are reports of a hate incident, it affects the whole
community,” she said. “My husband and kids are Asian American, and every time we hear about an
incident, it’s as if it happened to our own family.”

Local hospitals explain why they asked for waivers to expand nurses’ workloads
during a COVID-19 surge. Meanwhile, San Diego's spike in hate crimes against
Asian Americans mirrors a national trend. ... Read more →

AIRED: MARCH 5, 2021 | TRANSCRIPT

+ Subscribe to this podcast

KPBS Investigative Assistant Katy Stegall contributed to this story.

Sign up for Today's Top Stories newsletter
Need help keeping up with the news that matters most? Get the day's top news — ranging from local to
international — straight to your inbox each weekday morning.

https://www.kpbs.org/podcasts/san-diego-news-now/
https://www.kpbs.org/podcasts/san-diego-news-now/2021/mar/05/hospitals-explain-need-relief/
https://www.kpbs.org/podcasts/san-diego-news-now/2021/mar/05/hospitals-explain-need-relief/
https://www.kpbs.org/podcasts/san-diego-news-now/2021/mar/05/hospitals-explain-need-relief/#transcript
https://www.kpbs.org/podcasts/san-diego-news-now/
https://www.kpbs.org/podcasts/san-diego-news-now/
https://www.pledgecart.org/pledgeCart3/?campaign=FAE05F9D-EA90-48F0-ADD2-221C8B9FA2D8&source=WTW200001001
https://www.pledgecart.org/pledgeCart3/?campaign=FAE05F9D-EA90-48F0-ADD2-221C8B9FA2D8&source=WTW200001001


3/5/2021 Attack on elderly Filipino woman on San Diego trolley

https://www.10news.com/news/local-news/attack-on-elderly-filipino-woman-on-trolley?fbclid=IwAR2l-6eeFbc9zfYVgru-aMUp9FE2dMbWZzqBpDPU-E… 2/8

By: Melissa Mecija

Posted at 6:16 PM, Feb 15, 2021 and last updated 5:56 PM, Feb 22, 2021

SAN DIEGO (KGTV) -- An elderly Filipino woman was the victim of an

unprovoked attack on a San Diego trolley last Monday, multiple sources told

ABC 10News.

Sources said a man punched her for seemingly no reason at all. Witnesses

helped her report it to police. She was treated at a local hospital.

Recent Stories from 10news.com

San Diego Police said Tuesday that a suspect was arrested last week for assault

with a deadly weapon with an elder abuse enhancement. Police say the

incident is not considered a hate crime and was an isolated event.

35-year-old James Winslow is currently in custody, police confirmed. He is

being held on $100,000 bail.

Lt. Matthew Botkin gave credit to the community for their help with the case.

“They saw what happened, intervened, helped the victim call SDPD, waited

with her until we arrived and continued their assistance by being helpful with

the case. It was really a best case scenario response for our department and the

community,” Botkin said.

“My first reaction is angry and then I was just sad for her,” said JoAnn Fields,

a community advocate and director of the Filipino Resource Center.

There has been a wave of recent attacks on elderly Asian-Americans throughout the country

ADVERTISEMENT

 

https://www.10news.com/melissa-mecija
https://www.10news.com/melissa-mecija
https://www.10news.com/


3/5/2021 Attack on elderly Filipino woman on San Diego trolley

https://www.10news.com/news/local-news/attack-on-elderly-filipino-woman-on-trolley?fbclid=IwAR2l-6eeFbc9zfYVgru-aMUp9FE2dMbWZzqBpDPU-E… 3/8

ADVERTISEMENT

Community advocate JoAnn Fields said she has noticed an increase in

incidents since the start of the pandemic. “The previous president calling the

coronavirus the Chinese virus… that just amplified, I believe, hate toward our

community,” Fields said.

Attacks on elderly Asian Americans have been caught on video in recent

weeks. 84-year-old Vicha Ratanapakdee, a native of Thailand, was on a

morning walk in the San Francisco area when he was tackled. His head

slammed the pavement. Ratanapakdee later died.

“To see this trend, awful trend, happening throughout the United States

should put us on alert," Fields said.

The group Stop AAPI Hate started tracking anti-Asian hate nationwide

beginning in mid-March. It recorded more than 2,800 accounts by the end of

2020.

In San Diego County, the District Attorney’s office has three anti-Asian hate

crime cases currently open. There were none in 2018 and 2019.

“It makes me very angry seeing how ignorant people are,” said Kent, a former

Uber driver. He did not want to use his last name.

ADVERTISEMENT

 

https://www.10news.com/news/america-in-crisis/suspect-charged-in-connection-with-3-alleged-assaults-on-elderly-asian-americans-in-oakland
https://stopaapihate.org/
https://adclick.g.doubleclick.net/pcs/click?xai=AKAOjssQTsXdAPLgKZYFJwPI96y5TFE0dGAuwOdGqM9tLeRphoW3sQUmXJkbwgMScSpsWzfQOFkFUzKVA7XDfSCWB0eDh76ludP-NkpmWa_aavdMv0AWtS1UmZ-IetBevDUas62gYxXM8ZVxHtA&sig=Cg0ArKJSzK_JEt3c3mol&urlfix=1&adurl=https://lax1-ib.adnxs.com/click%3FSOF6FK5HEUAEkUWaeAcOQAAAAMD1KCRABJFFmngHDkBI4XoUrkcRQF5__yV8How2y5kGOb4X3yQ6iUJgAAAAAMGX3ABKAAAAyCUAAAIAAACKlrUPIsgaAAAAAABVU0QAVVNEACwB-gAzOAAAAAABAgUCAAAAAMIAhh_XuAAAAAA./bcr%3DAAAAAAAA8D8%3D/cnd%3D%2521BhOcawjw1ZEXEIqt1n0YopBrIAAoADEAAAAAAAAbQDoJTEFYMTo0NTI3QPUqSQAAAAAAAPA_UQAAAAAAAAAAWQAAAAAAAAAAYaRwPQrXo8A_aQAAAAAAAAAAcQAAAAAAAAAAeAA./cca%3DOTY3MiNMQVgxOjQ1Mjc%3D/bn%3D84325/clickenc%3Dhttps://www.wawanesa.com/us/california/products/automobile/jd-power-1%253Futm_source%253Dinuvo%2526utm_medium%253Dprogrammatic%2526utm_campaign%253DDeutschLA_cross-device-display%2526utm_term%253Dss-cf%2526dclid%253D%2525edclid!
https://www.10news.com/


3/5/2021 Attack on elderly Filipino woman on San Diego trolley

https://www.10news.com/news/local-news/attack-on-elderly-filipino-woman-on-trolley?fbclid=IwAR2l-6eeFbc9zfYVgru-aMUp9FE2dMbWZzqBpDPU-E… 4/8

ADVERTISEMENT

Ads by 
Stop seeing this ad

Why this ad? 

While picking up passengers in the Convoy area March of last year, he said the

passengers immediately started poking fun of the coronavirus and his Hong

Kong background. Kent remained mostly quiet during the ride when the

passengers said he could let them out if he wanted. Kent said the passengers

then gave him a one-star rating.

He no longer is a ride-share driver. “I stopped because of the pandemic and

also I’m afraid something like this would happen again,” Kent said. “That

incident was only verbal. What if I get attacked next time?” 

Copyright 2021 Scripps Media, Inc. All rights reserved. This material may not be published, broadcast, rewritten, or redistributed.

Sign up for the Rebound Newsletter and receive up to date information.

E-mail  Submit

CURATION BY

American Airlines: 2 arrested for assaulting
other passengers, crew on �ight diverted to
Phoenix

ADVERTISEMENT

 

https://www.googleadservices.com/pagead/aclk?sa=L&ai=CpZ-BPYlCYKyUM8K9ngXAu7aQB5ictsRhjoi4kYcNgtaGuZkLEAEg5pSFGGDJ3viGyKPoGaABs96F1QPIAQLgAgCoAwHIAwiqBLYCT9A3xshOfw-Vyw2F-tmWj6TFhx93ZXmkMc6msFk1byoU1t3bhP9N5eR_UWMdNYIlDRENh7D6bNX25XhIotPEdRg9hNoS3VP1zrM6V_GhfsNFJ7FtPwE6lR0WtJHIYvhF3v3oWnelO1pDurqpSiCvtFMto-SDJ_KjmpTLl0bxvkxWouHBnb0I0FYWBTfp3B7ORFKZxY_RjHmu2-xlAROqkjVfjDW5AwHjvIXv05MV0IP0Ay_mN3sHX5REtTRAoqBHOh5_kILxnnS7HaKKPvtO59JJKLR2ZwGn52G1b4BWPKdgGUgILwvkbw8oaQushAk0PEcKBkm7nQWuxif0WfobFObxD845LXqYGcKSiN8sL3gCRPWPTyeACSvA9wVOiZwsPYsXWUQoAzcDp8NoBu4IZLF5mqyeJ8AEkODG98AD4AQBoAYCgAe1ofoqqAfVyRuoB_DZG6gH8tkbqAeOzhuoB5PYG6gHugaoB-6WsQKoB6a-G6gH7NUbqAfz0RuoB-zVG6gHltgb2AcB0ggHCIBhEAEYHbEJuQIUROFuXCiACgOYCwHICwG4DAHYEws&ae=1&num=1&cid=CAASEuRoA9bZn3ddZilna04xXAKRxA&sig=AOD64_0y_uf2CzYZBAWlUBZPGaK6ehtcWA&client=ca-pub-8414627280054593&nx=CLICK_X&ny=CLICK_Y&nb=2&adurl=https://help.rescue.org/donate/yemen-crisis%3Fms%3Dgd_ppc_fy21_yemen_dmusa_jan%26initialms%3Dgd_ppc_fy21_yemen_dmusa_jan%26gclid%3DEAIaIQobChMI7KaPlfSZ7wIVwp6nCh3AnQ1yEAEYASAAEgKEhfD_BwE
https://adssettings.google.com/whythisad?reasons=_eWQZL2oYRKISE0sOr5I5_iVc-xCdCucrtxnyTD1cHNBSeZqNk_8JoZ_5ksgVwbqkiCpGr-O56IznTo7BZ9X1Rr95ykhrm0e_C3g2I2jK3TfdfJC3GsT6wmYvoZra3aUXh9GVwly9Ule9FKoTQx2JcepkBEHNKkXjK9gKCtiUZVvOLjmM9iO0dUKaQXC1FpqN6QSjugPi6ioMSfoloyaaJMVXB1sCWKh826FUTQ3oVfKGwRlBmhy2593WFfZvSUosOyMskinl_rMRVv7i5Q8-j2BHnjyqgOprGR5EWrB-C7z8hwMxCgBl4dMduAPqIo4WGkz9YQIDEbpV8sJhQ,jhV5DrPOVI9zEsZ2N0nA3g&source=display
https://adssettings.google.com/whythisad?reasons=_eWQZL2oYRKISE0sOr5I5_iVc-xCdCucrtxnyTD1cHNBSeZqNk_8JoZ_5ksgVwbqkiCpGr-O56IznTo7BZ9X1Rr95ykhrm0e_C3g2I2jK3TfdfJC3GsT6wmYvoZra3aUXh9GVwly9Ule9FKoTQx2JcepkBEHNKkXjK9gKCtiUZVvOLjmM9iO0dUKaQXC1FpqN6QSjugPi6ioMSfoloyaaJMVXB1sCWKh826FUTQ3oVfKGwRlBmhy2593WFfZvSUosOyMskinl_rMRVv7i5Q8-j2BHnjyqgOprGR5EWrB-C7z8hwMxCgBl4dMduAPqIo4WGkz9YQIDEbpV8sJhQ,jhV5DrPOVI9zEsZ2N0nA3g&source=display
https://adssettings.google.com/whythisad?reasons=_eWQZL2oYRKISE0sOr5I5_iVc-xCdCucrtxnyTD1cHNBSeZqNk_8JoZ_5ksgVwbqkiCpGr-O56IznTo7BZ9X1Rr95ykhrm0e_C3g2I2jK3TfdfJC3GsT6wmYvoZra3aUXh9GVwly9Ule9FKoTQx2JcepkBEHNKkXjK9gKCtiUZVvOLjmM9iO0dUKaQXC1FpqN6QSjugPi6ioMSfoloyaaJMVXB1sCWKh826FUTQ3oVfKGwRlBmhy2593WFfZvSUosOyMskinl_rMRVv7i5Q8-j2BHnjyqgOprGR5EWrB-C7z8hwMxCgBl4dMduAPqIo4WGkz9YQIDEbpV8sJhQ,jhV5DrPOVI9zEsZ2N0nA3g&source=display
https://www.10news.com/news/national/american-airlines-2-arrested-for-assaulting-other-passengers-crew-on-flight-diverted-to-phoenix?obOrigUrl=true
https://www.outbrain.com/what-is/default/en
https://www.10news.com/


3/5/2021 Opinion: A year into the pandemic, Asian Pacific Islanders still face racism and xenophobia. It must end. - The San Diego Union-Tribune

https://www.sandiegouniontribune.com/opinion/commentary/story/2021-02-12/opinion-a-year-into-the-pandemic-asian-pacific-islanders-still-face-racis… 1/8

COMMENTARY

Opinion: A year into the pandemic, Asian Pacific Islanders still face
racism and xenophobia. It must end.

A woman prays on the first day of the Lunar New Year of the Ox outside the Thien Hau Temple, temporarily closed due to the coronavirus pandemic, in the
Chinatown neighborhood of Los Angeles, California on Feb. 12, 2021. (AFP via Getty Images)

By KENT LEE

FEB. 12, 2021 3:19 PM PT

ADVERTISEMENT

Move Forward with Facts 

$4/4 months

LOG IN

https://www.sandiegouniontribune.com/opinion/commentary
https://www.facebook.com/dialog/share?app_id=125832154430708&display=popup&href=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.sandiegouniontribune.com%2Fopinion%2Fcommentary%2Fstory%2F2021-02-12%2Fopinion-a-year-into-the-pandemic-asian-pacific-islanders-still-face-racism-and-xenophobia-it-must-end
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.sandiegouniontribune.com%2Fopinion%2Fcommentary%2Fstory%2F2021-02-12%2Fopinion-a-year-into-the-pandemic-asian-pacific-islanders-still-face-racism-and-xenophobia-it-must-end&text=Opinion%3A%20A%20year%20into%20the%20pandemic%2C%20Asian%20Pacific%20Islanders%20still%20face%20racism%20and%20xenophobia.%20It%20must%20end.
https://www.googleadservices.com/pagead/aclk?sa=L&ai=Cwz__3opCYKz-N8yi7wLYvKzwDpictsRh7sC3kYcNgtaGuZkLEAEgr8C2cGDJ3viGyKPoGaABs96F1QPIAQLgAgCoAwHIAwiqBJ4DT9CfAjwhGW3428yFRz-RYmDvy7XpHrbv2dwq2CVP-XtIFYxc1NKxRj8iswZ0_YSBPdyNINmX6ZdJZy32tgU_2JRKzFJYMM9Sm-gD6yjt3TfZYS3muwk_IDO2EiGd_e9vjTwUr1g9kiQmN16bE8P_rUd_jFqeGzD4HQk3Bf8YclaEjLiJthsUwpG7y4R8zs2wrZHVS9Trd79bnCK030809BVxGZlXGH1keyaRElkKwT4gZz6RYzQji00DKXPuXL4GuMxMEnNrQQdPMXvyGtzxGCIul9O-TdUIRSCVth2ZxRDREv90cPJJBvOtGK6DtOYQSmPZNJvQws2Jp71cD5vjscG2VPYo9ttv5QC8Zm9jTDhUtT2zxclWkijswzs1qLY8eeivjT8IYsBkKyeB4xgsSq0VtlN_Smmr8tQmLDG0-eQItr8rZVJT8K6Q0wDFi3aXEsDZO1Bbl3mMPOA3jLdW0T72q9EqZhCF-Q8T8Xg9rbRU8efFXCf0ugXb_6LLs7y4hGTpk1R3MOEM7B_jLhJL45mVWAJnb6G2I7Rz66IFwASQ4Mb3wAPgBAGgBgKAB7Wh-iqoB9XJG6gH8NkbqAfy2RuoB47OG6gHk9gbqAe6BqgH7paxAqgHpr4bqAfs1RuoB_PRG6gH7NUbqAeW2BvYBwHSCAcIgGEQARgdsQm5AhRE4W5cKIAKA5gLAcgLAbgMAdgTCw&ae=1&num=1&cid=CAASEuRo3zw6X0bocdToOIWYQpl8Aw&sig=AOD64_0bNl_nmR1ZPCCfnziPFeyweFiOAA&client=ca-pub-1409437888781518&nx=CLICK_X&ny=CLICK_Y&nb=2&adurl=https://help.rescue.org/donate/yemen-crisis%3Fms%3Dgd_ppc_fy21_yemen_dmusa_jan%26initialms%3Dgd_ppc_fy21_yemen_dmusa_jan%26gclid%3DEAIaIQobChMIrOX_2_WZ7wIVTNFbCh1YHgvuEAEYASAAEgIziPD_BwE
https://adssettings.google.com/whythisad?reasons=-5ghwxdm0QhdcoUMPwzu533Vqj--wZHfuLqaEbNDirqQWrdHzwE_gL5vcHQFBpY-1wAXIALC_vc_kY-32flxuOyH2H1owu4dFu2dhUk94ydWaEpO9SmJwc5xUdno8TMQGeOiVO0vwXPYoRkkGknVmfm201w363bklr3ltiBss20a2OqnxbaQ,ni7Ldn03KcI9RNuN_lOnxw&source=display
https://adssettings.google.com/whythisad?reasons=-5ghwxdm0QhdcoUMPwzu533Vqj--wZHfuLqaEbNDirqQWrdHzwE_gL5vcHQFBpY-1wAXIALC_vc_kY-32flxuOyH2H1owu4dFu2dhUk94ydWaEpO9SmJwc5xUdno8TMQGeOiVO0vwXPYoRkkGknVmfm201w363bklr3ltiBss20a2OqnxbaQ,ni7Ldn03KcI9RNuN_lOnxw&source=display
https://www.sandiegouniontribune.com/subscriptions/digital.html?int_source=marketing_content&int_medium=TD&int_campaign=SDJA21
https://www.sandiegouniontribune.com/


3/5/2021 Opinion: A year into the pandemic, Asian Pacific Islanders still face racism and xenophobia. It must end. - The San Diego Union-Tribune

https://www.sandiegouniontribune.com/opinion/commentary/story/2021-02-12/opinion-a-year-into-the-pandemic-asian-pacific-islanders-still-face-racis… 2/8

Lee is the co-chair of the San Diego Asian Pacific Islander (API) Coalition and executive director of Pacific Arts

Movement (presenter of the San Diego Asian Film Festival), and lives in Mira Mesa.

The Asian Pacific Islander (API) community commemorated Lunar New Year on Friday, almost one year after the

United States reported its first case of COVID-19 community transmission. Yet long before the pandemic’s inevitable

spread, API communities were already dealing with another insidious disease — racism and xenophobia.

As early as January 2020, reports surfaced of small businesses facing declining patronage and individuals across the

country being victims of hate as the novel coronavirus began to spread globally. Fueled by the former president’s

penchant for applying labels rather than applying strategic solutions, the uptick in anti-API sentiment was

documented by the national Stop AAPI Hate campaign — which saw 1,497 reported incidents in its first four weeks of

existence.

San Diego was certainly not immune to either disease. As our hospitals began to see the initial strain of COVID-19’s

spread, API communities were reporting incidents ranging from verbal harassment to the racially charged Zoom

bombing of an SDSU student group to threats of physical violence against a 65-year-old mother, her daughter and

granddaughter.

We provide this platform for community
commentary free of charge. Thank you to all the

Union-Tribune subscribers whose support
makes our journalism possible. If you are not a

subscriber, please consider becoming one today.

Support our journalists

Alarmed by incidents both locally and nationally, the San Diego Asian Pacific Islander Coalition was formed —

drawing more than 70 organizations for an initial joint statement denouncing API hatred. Shortly thereafter, the

https://nam04.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.cbs8.com%2Farticle%2Fnews%2Flocal%2Fsan-diego-asian-businesses-take-a-hit-amid-coronavirus-fears%2F509-ece30aef-f40f-455d-af1e-82503f447601&data=04%7C01%7Claura.castaneda%40sduniontribune.com%7C6fed978897774dd2613408d8cf82d8da%7Ca42080b34dd948b4bf44d70d3bbaf5d2%7C0%7C0%7C637487509093067001%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=KBuIu3eqduoSszTQM7dtvi6vP1vlC2qOP7zaDJBqy94%3D&reserved=0
https://nam04.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fstopaapihate.org%2F&data=04%7C01%7Claura.castaneda%40sduniontribune.com%7C6fed978897774dd2613408d8cf82d8da%7Ca42080b34dd948b4bf44d70d3bbaf5d2%7C0%7C0%7C637487509093067001%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=abW6zFLF0AZ8yUjhB19DXtrguzGMu22Pjt7Lt6rnQ7Q%3D&reserved=0
https://nam04.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fsecureservercdn.net%2F104.238.69.231%2Fa1w.90d.myftpupload.com%2Fwp-content%2Fuploads%2F2020%2F10%2FStop_AAPI_Hate_Monthly_Report_200423.pdf&data=04%7C01%7Claura.castaneda%40sduniontribune.com%7C6fed978897774dd2613408d8cf82d8da%7Ca42080b34dd948b4bf44d70d3bbaf5d2%7C0%7C0%7C637487509093076960%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=i8ipI7hceZp5uvA0qAWY6cfIhNV%2FeOC24FY6b9cbyok%3D&reserved=0
https://www.sandiegouniontribune.com/subscriptions/digital-only.html?pid_campaigns=5139_MTRDigitalWB2,5140_MTRDigitalWB2&int_source=on_site&int_medium=december_acquisition_sale_landing_page&int_campaign=digital_test
https://www.sandiegouniontribune.com/opinion/commentary
https://www.sandiegouniontribune.com/subscriptions/digital-only.html?pid_campaigns=5139_MTRDigitalWB2,5140_MTRDigitalWB2&int_source=on_site&int_medium=december_acquisition_sale_landing_page&int_campaign=digital_test
https://nam04.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fsdapicoalition.org%2F&data=04%7C01%7Claura.castaneda%40sduniontribune.com%7C6fed978897774dd2613408d8cf82d8da%7Ca42080b34dd948b4bf44d70d3bbaf5d2%7C0%7C0%7C637487509093076960%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=MyNW8vEOE5nyzdgvMeGlynvxO3daURVC3q7Zpbm7P7w%3D&reserved=0
https://nam04.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fpacarts.org%2Fstopapihate&data=04%7C01%7Claura.castaneda%40sduniontribune.com%7C6fed978897774dd2613408d8cf82d8da%7Ca42080b34dd948b4bf44d70d3bbaf5d2%7C0%7C0%7C637487509093086907%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=ppSdD%2BL%2BS1kp2kTmfTJ135dMxA4uakzbhjczrw1Yj6g%3D&reserved=0


3/5/2021 Opinion: A year into the pandemic, Asian Pacific Islanders still face racism and xenophobia. It must end. - The San Diego Union-Tribune

https://www.sandiegouniontribune.com/opinion/commentary/story/2021-02-12/opinion-a-year-into-the-pandemic-asian-pacific-islanders-still-face-racis… 3/8

coalition helped craft a San Diego City Council resolution, put forward by then-Council President Georgette Gomez

and Councilmember Monica Montgomery, condemning anti-API sentiments while encouraging additional city

action. The coalition also advocated for an Asian Pacific Islander-representative seat on the county’s newly re-

established Human Relations Commission.

Despite all that has been accomplished thus far, our true work as a coalition and as a community has just begun. We

have much work left to do.

Today, nearly one year into the pandemic, we again face an alarming increase in anti-API sentiment, including

numerous recently documented attacks on the elderly. These latest acts of hate and cowardice are especially

heartbreaking. No communities should have to protect their seniors from violence. No communities should have to

offer their elderly self-defense classes just to walk down the street or to shop at their local store. Or any other basic

human rights.

ADVERTISEMENT

Even as we react to these incidents with horror, it is important to consider that for each act of hate captured and

shared on video or social media, there are likely dozens, if not hundreds more, that remain unreported.

In San Diego, advocates have called for more disaggregated data to show the disparate impact of COVID-19 on

multiple fronts, including a focus on the toll on Filipino frontline healthcare workers and communities. In general,

the lack of publicly collected data means the extent of anti-API racism and xenophobia here in our communities

remains largely unknown.

What is clear, however, is that while the new year brings renewed hope in fighting the pandemic, racism and

xenophobia remain largely unabated and unchecked. Especially following the U.S. Capitol insurrection on Jan. 6, we

can now see that hate has established new footing, impacting far more than just Asian Pacific Islander communities.

As a result, the San Diego API Coalition has begun 2021 assessing where API voices are necessary to contribute to the

overall well-being of the region. Whether it is a result of the model minority myth or the diasporic nature of

immigrant API communities, we often remain invisible and overlooked. Although the API community is often

perceived as silent, we now speak collectively to challenge anti-API sentiment.

https://nam04.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.usatoday.com%2Fstory%2Fnews%2Fnation%2F2021%2F02%2F12%2Fasian-hate-incidents-covid-19-lunar-new-year%2F4447037001%2F&data=04%7C01%7Claura.castaneda%40sduniontribune.com%7C6fed978897774dd2613408d8cf82d8da%7Ca42080b34dd948b4bf44d70d3bbaf5d2%7C0%7C0%7C637487509093086907%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=XM0WUIlSIW30aNebQYaTryjb6omV6kk1sgKsdkXiywM%3D&reserved=0
https://nam04.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.voiceofsandiego.org%2Ftopics%2Fgovernment%2Ffilipino-residents-have-been-hit-hard-by-covid-but-no-one-know-just-how-hard%2F&data=04%7C01%7Claura.castaneda%40sduniontribune.com%7C6fed978897774dd2613408d8cf82d8da%7Ca42080b34dd948b4bf44d70d3bbaf5d2%7C0%7C0%7C637487509093096863%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=kXj1zCEMlkk1EhPOommUhPr1BUYy7%2FYTU1kuR2xRy6w%3D&reserved=0


3/5/2021 Opinion: A year into the pandemic, Asian Pacific Islanders still face racism and xenophobia. It must end. - The San Diego Union-Tribune

https://www.sandiegouniontribune.com/opinion/commentary/story/2021-02-12/opinion-a-year-into-the-pandemic-asian-pacific-islanders-still-face-racis… 4/8

ADVERTISEMENT

Given the lack of API representation in locally elected offices, among elected staffs, and even on boards and

commissions throughout the region, we must step up and speak for ourselves rather than depend on others to call

attention to — and to address — our collective issues.

Now, as much as ever, representation matters.

The San Diego API Coalition was formed to foster stronger collaboration, communication and advocacy in one of the

most diverse demographic communities in the San Diego region. Collectively, we seek not only to uplift API voices

but to also strengthen our work in solidarity with numerous marginalized communities — many for which the

pandemic has only exacerbated existing economic and health access disparities.

Now we ask the San Diego community as a whole to take action. Let us call out hate in all forms — wherever we see it.

Encourage victims to report their experiences and demand data that reflects the depth of the pandemic’s impact.

Support minority- and immigrant-owned businesses who have suffered disproportionately throughout the pandemic.

ADVERTISEMENT

Only by working together can we build a stronger, more compassionate and more inclusive San Diego. Only together

can we begin to develop “herd immunity” against racism and xenophobia.

COMMENTARY OPINION LATEST

https://www.sandiegouniontribune.com/opinion/commentary
https://www.sandiegouniontribune.com/opinion
https://www.sandiegouniontribune.com/latest


 (R-2021-343) 

-PAGE 1 OF 4- 

RESOLUTION NUMBER R-_________________ 

DATE OF FINAL PASSAGE _________________ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

SAN DIEGO CONDEMNING HATE AND EXTREMISM 
 

WHEREAS, the City of San Diego is committed to defending democratic institutions, the 

integrity of our elections, and the security of people and facilities that carry out the democratic 

process; and 

WHEREAS, on January 6, 2021 insurrectionists attacked the United States Capitol and 

this event does not reflect the values of the City of San Diego; and 

WHEREAS, the Anti-Defamation League’s 2020 report on Murder and Extremism in the 

United States reveals that domestic extremists killed at least 17 people, where roughly a third of 

which were by anti-government extremists; and  

WHEREAS, disinformation, misinformation, and online conspiracy theories are 

spreading and inspiring real-world violence; and 

WHEREAS, the Anti-Defamation League’s 2020 report on Murder and Extremism in the 

United States, states that "extremist killings can have a disproportionate effect on 

communities, especially when they take the form of a hate crime or a terrorist attack... [and] such 

attacks are often intended to strike fear more widely throughout vulnerable communities;” and 

WHEREAS, the City of San Diego supports the peaceful exercise of free speech, free 

assembly, and freedom to worship safely for all people; and 

WHEREAS, the City of San Diego is committed to ending the spread of hate, bigotry, 

and harassment based on race, color, religion, national origin, ethnicity, sex, gender, gender 

identity and expression, sexual orientation, disability, or any other protected characteristic as 

defined by law; and 



 (R-2021-343) 

-PAGE 2 OF 4- 

WHEREAS, the City of San Diego wishes to affirm its commitment to the well-being 

and safety of all of its community members and to ensure that they will be protected, and their 

rights respected; and 

WHEREAS, the City of San Diego wishes to affirm its commitment to cultivating an 

inclusive community, including within the City operations and institutions; and 

WHEREAS, the diversity of our community is beneficial to all within it, making us 

stronger and more resilient; and 

WHEREAS, our elected leaders are committed to: promoting inclusiveness; celebrating 

diversity; working to ensure equitable opportunities in all major facets of society; preventing the 

spread of misinformation and disinformation; rejecting hate and bias in all forms; and setting a 

positive example for their constituents; NOW, THEREFORE,  

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Council of the City of San Diego that: 

1. The Council affirms its ongoing commitment to cultivating an inclusive, safe, and 

just society and culture within the City that values the diversity of our community, 

works to ensure equitable opportunities in all major facets of society, and 

celebrates both our individuality and commonality. 

2. The Council denounces the spread of hate, bigotry, harassment, and violence 

based on race, color, religion, national origin, ethnicity, sex, gender, gender 

identity and expression, sexual orientation, disability, or any other protected 

characteristic as defined by law. 

3. The Council denounces all extremist attacks, as well as extremist conspiracy 

theories, misinformation, and disinformation that cultivate an alienated and 



 (R-2021-343) 

-PAGE 3 OF 4- 

mistrustful electorate, undermine democratic institutions and processes, and 

increase the likelihood of violence. 

4. The Council intends to continue fostering an environment within City operations 

and institutions that does not tolerate the spread of hate, bigotry, and harassment 

based on race, color, religion, national origin, ethnicity, sex, gender, gender 

identity and expression, sexual orientation, disability, or any other protected 

characteristic as defined by law. 

5. The Council encourages the City to support community organizations, advocacy 

groups, or other government entities working to educate the public about the 

impacts of hate and extremism.  

6. The Council intends to counter hate and extremism through continued 

engagement with community leaders, continued governmental transparency, 

public information-sharing, and the continued investigation and prosecution of 

those who commit criminal acts, consistent with civil liberties protections. 

7. The Council urges City residents to adopt these values in their own lives, call 

attention to these harms, and denounce hate and extremism to help keep us safe. 

APPROVED: MARA W. ELLIOTT, City Attorney 

By   

Anjana Pottathil 

Deputy City Attorney 

AP1:jdf 

02/19/2021 

Or.Dept: Council 

Doc. No.: 2593427_2 

 



 (R-2021-343) 

-PAGE 4 OF 4- 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution was passed by the Council of the City of San Diego, at this 

meeting of  . 

ELIZABETH S. MALAND 

City Clerk 

By  

Deputy City Clerk 

Approved:   

(date) TODD GLORIA, Mayor 

Vetoed:   

(date) TODD GLORIA, Mayor 



4/12/2021 Stop AAPI Hate | Human Relations Commission | City of San Diego Official Website

https://www.sandiego.gov/human-relations/stop-aapi-hate 1/3

Stop AAPI Hate
Since the start of the to COVID-19 pandemic, acts of violence against Asian, Asian American, and
Paci�c Islander communities are on the rise, both locally and nationally.

If you have experienced or witnessed an act of hate as a result of COVID-19, please report the
incident to the Stop AAPI Hate Reporting Center
(http://www.asianpaci�cpolicyandplanningcouncil.org/stop-aapi-hate/).

On June 2, 2020, the San Diego City Council adopted resolution  R-313068
(//www.sandiego.gov/sites/default/�les/r-313068.pdf), denouncing xenophobia and anti-Asian
racism arising due to fears of the COVID-19 pandemic and a�rming the City of San Diego's
commitment to the well-being and safety of Asian Paci�c Islander (API) communities.

The resolution a�rms the following 10 points:

1. The City denounces xenophobia and anti-API sentiment and condemns harmful rhetoric and
racist acts arising due to the fears of the COVID-19 pandemic.

2. The City joins cities, counties, and states across the country in a�rming its commitment to the
safety and well-being of citizens, non-citizens and visitors with ancestry from the Asia Paci�c
region and in combating racist acts targeting APIs.

3. The City Council encourages the City to partner with community-based organizations,
advocacy groups, as well as other appropriate o�cials and agencies across the county, to
protect API residents and victims of discrimination and to curb hate acts related to COVID-19
for other groups, including, but not limited to, Black, Latinx, Indigenous, Muslim, Jewish,
and LGBTQIA communities, and people with disabilities.

4. The City Council recommends that City sta� link the Stop AAPI Hate reporting center on the
City’s website to join the national e�ort of documenting and combating anti-API
discrimination.

5. The City Council encourages the City to partner with the County of San Diego, healthcare
providers and community-based organizations to educate the public on mental health
services for those who have been traumatized or otherwise stigmatized by anti-API hate.

6. The City Council encourages City sta� to work with the San Diego Human Relations
Commission in documenting and investigating incidents of anti-API racism and promote
respect for all residents in businesses and public areas.

7. The City Council encourages City Departments to ensure that all information, such as public
health information and emergency and disaster relief resources, is disseminated e�ectively to
Limited English Pro�cient (LEP) communities.

Human Relations Commission
Feedback

http://www.asianpacificpolicyandplanningcouncil.org/stop-aapi-hate/
https://www.sandiego.gov/sites/default/files/r-313068.pdf


4/12/2021 Stop AAPI Hate | Human Relations Commission | City of San Diego Official Website

https://www.sandiego.gov/human-relations/stop-aapi-hate 2/3

8. The City Council encourages City Departments to ensure that eligible minority-owned and
disadvantaged small businesses have fair access to the City’s resources, such as the Small
Business Relief Fund, and can be directed to language assistance where needed.

9. The City Council urges the City to partner with community-based organizations to highlight
API stories and uplift the contributions of API-owned businesses and API-led organizations.

10. The City calls upon all counties, cities, and local governments across the United States to
adopt similar commitments to rea�rm their solidarity with API communities and commit to
combating hate and improving health equity.

Feedback



4/12/2021 Resources for Asian Pacific Islander communities — Pacific Arts Movement

https://pacarts.org/sdapicoalition/api-resources/ 1/2

Email media@pacarts.org to submit resources.

REPORTING HATE CRIMES

Stop AAPI Hate 

Stand Against Hatred- Asian Americans Advancing Justice

MENTAL HEALTH RESOURCES

It’s Up to Us- San Diego Resources 

A Mental Wellness Activity Book For Asian Americans

Sakhi For South Asian Women 

Supporting AAPIs in the workplace

Free/reduced mental health care from Asian professionals

Asian, Paci�c Islander, and South Asian American (APISAA) Therapist

Directory

Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration

California Hope

How to Protect Your Mental Health While Fighting Racial Injustice

Mental Health Resources for Young People of Color

COVID-19 RESOURCES

Community Health Worker Communication & Outreach Services

How to Handle Coronavirus- Crisis Text Line

UCLA COVID-19 Multilingual Resources

TRAINING RESOURCES

How To Respond To Harassment For People Experiencing Anti-

Asian/American Harassment Training

Hollaback Bystander Intervention 

Stay Safe From Hate guide

Asian Americans Advancing Justice Bystander intervention training

SDSU STUDENT RESOURCES

 SDSU Asian Paci�c Islander Desi American Resource Center (APIDA)

“Let’s Talk!” spaces to discuss and unpack current events

mailto:media@pacarts.org
https://stopaapihate.org/
https://www.standagainsthatred.org/
https://up2sd.org/resources/mental-health-local/
https://rb.gy/dry4e3
https://www.sakhi.org/
https://www.cnbc.com/2021/02/19/how-to-support-asian-american-colleagues-amid-anti-asian-violence.html
https://www.instagram.com/p/CLqM5HlDzFS/?fbclid=IwAR3aHdl_B0t3ONHxTaKeuxXpfsji2yyMla2JazJGmB7lxNv1zwE8LNpO0uE
https://www.asianmhc.org/apisaa
https://www.samhsa.gov/find-help/national-helpline
http://calhope.org/?utm_source=brandgiants&utm_medium=SEM&utm_campaign=calhope&utm_content=ZH&gclid=EAIaIQobChMI94ma_oHj7gIVxhmtBh1NqA8REAAYASAAEgJhivD_BwE
https://onlinecounselingprograms.com/resources/racial-injustice-mental-health-resources/
https://onlinecounselingprograms.com/resources/mental-health-resources-students-of-color/
https://www.upacsd.com/programs/chwcos/?fbclid=IwAR3WsuowWCDWU9bihIjhZhJpNK1gRYf4rGD_5F2FkuBEP0XW0FYpAntdgG8
https://www.crisistextline.org/topics/get-help-coronavirus/?gclid=EAIaIQobChMI94ma_oHj7gIVxhmtBh1NqA8REAAYAiAAEgIjAvD_BwE#dealing-with-coronavirus-1
https://www.translatecovid.org/?fbclid=IwAR2Nx1mtDLptMZ7cg0l3uyMW-TFxRIIRhOaVe39hwZC-y66O2HdWQfOSUsg
https://zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_zIgzrtEDSEasXw71gbd5uQ
https://www.ihollaback.org/bystanderintervention/
https://mailchi.mp/aafederation/aaf-landing-page
https://www.advancingjustice-chicago.org/what-we-do/bystander-intervention-trainings/
https://sacd.sdsu.edu/apida-resource
https://comm.sdsu.edu/o00Hz009w00lpB04pPMw3p0


4/12/2021 Resources for Asian Pacific Islander communities — Pacific Arts Movement

https://pacarts.org/sdapicoalition/api-resources/ 2/2

Lets Talk! spaces to discuss and unpack current events

“Let’s Be Better Together!” trainings/workshops to learn about ways to respond

to anti-Asian hate

Cultural education workshops and other programs to learn more about

historical and current contexts.

The APIDA Conference, to be held April 3 and April 10, that will examine COVID-

19 impacts on APIDA communities, featuring leaders from STOP AAPI Hate,

Asian Americans Advancing Justice, and other organizations.

FUNDRAISERS

Stop Asian Hate: Together, We Can Make a Di�erence 

46 Orgs to Donate To (NYMag)

#EnoughIsEnough: NYC Chinatown businesses campaign; donations go to

free meals + Chinatown charities

Oakland Chinatown ambassador program/victims fund

We All We Got- San Diego mutual aid network

PETITIONS

Get Mainstream News Coverage Of National Elderly Asian American Assaults

StopDiscriminAsian

Denounce racist attacks on Asian-Australians. #UnityOverFear during Covid-

19

 

EDUCATIONAL MATERIAL

Black + AAPI History and Resources 

Coronavirus, racism & Asian Americans (2)

Police violence and Asian communities (2)

Vincent, Who? Documentary

Yellow Peril Master Syllabus

AAPI Women Lead – statement, community care/mutual aid resources

Resources from Stanford University, including bystander steps

Statement from Chinatown Community for Equitable Development

Statement from 60+ Bay Area Asian American Orgs

Love Our People, Heal Our Communities: A Call to Action

Asian American Feminist Collective 

I Still Believe Poster Downloads

https://comm.sdsu.edu/o00Hz009w00lpB04pPMw3p0
https://comm.sdsu.edu/lwM3a000plpp0P0w40z0I0B
https://comm.sdsu.edu/o00Jz00bw00lpB04pPMw3p0
https://comm.sdsu.edu/twPp030wBp0pc00zM4000lK
https://www.gofundme.com/c/act/stop-aapi-hate
https://nymag.com/strategist/article/where-to-donate-to-help-asian-communities-2021.html
https://givebutter.com/enoughisenough
https://www.classy.org/give/326018/#!/donation/checkout
https://www.weallwegotsd.com/
http://chng.it/Pd8JRYPJV7
https://www.stopdiscriminasian.org/
https://www.change.org/p/denounce-racist-attacks-on-asian-australians-unityoverfear-during-covid-19
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1ZW2ihZ3s9obLvSzNgcYebTEehdeTtH3lfccq5sKhWiw/edit#
https://static1.squarespace.com/static/59f87d66914e6b2a2c51b657/t/5e7bbeef7811c16d3a8768eb/1585168132614/AAFCZine3_CareintheTimeofCoronavirus.pdf
https://www.nationalgeographic.com/history/article/asian-american-racism-covid
https://truthout.org/articles/more-policing-is-not-the-solution-to-anti-asian-violence/
https://time.com/5938482/asian-american-attacks/
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=QKSq8iuNHsk&list=PL3F74C2EF67CCECD1&ab_channel=fushion83
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1-DLnAY5r-f4DRLZgndR_Bu47nqHVtAOKem5QRmbz7bg/edit?fbclid=IwAR1UGqLNm6hFQCpgJCmONLLzTbPR8GdzIzByofMW0nQGMon_Ebr5ZkB7GWQ
https://www.imreadymovement.org/covid-19
https://studentaffairs.stanford.edu/aapi-harassment
https://docs.google.com/document/d/e/2PACX-1vT1Ty60GRTlCU6Maj5887-lYYTpWopp-SBJdLOdsn6sunUynx90Y0Euc7y_E7xm33PAjmmF-LZMTcyX/pub
https://caasf.org/press-release/asian-organizations-across-the-bay-area-join-forces-to-demand-action-against-violence/
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Oiiv9dNENcwOUboetWCxIjdkKNkDGVmNfspPClp8Q2w/edit
https://www.asianamfeminism.org/resources?fbclid=IwAR3S4xfsScJmNSYsNVMRRMQj4hSUhuJtHK-0az2OMVOzzB4NoHot-CDiInk
https://www.istillbelieve.nyc/downloads?fbclid=IwAR1poNhURH3yy0kheAL1VCgpKx0me31W2Th9rbKf6Gubm-EkXdAlzTx6qcg


 
 

 
 

Memorandum for the City of San Diego’s Human Relations Commission 
 
As a follow-up to the June 2020 resolution adopted by City Council (R-313068), the San Diego 
Asian Pacific Islander Coalition recommends the following actions to be taken by the Human 
Relations Commission:  
 

1. Promote wider usage of national hate incidents reporting tool (stopaapihate.org) and 
local community resource list (pacarts.org/sdapicoalition/api-resources) - especially 
among the elderly and multilingual communities. (in addition to #4 in resolution) 
 

2. Increase API representation on HRC and across other city boards and commissions by 
collaborating with API-led organizations to identify and prepare candidates. 
 

3. Ensure city’s language access plan is up to date with API languages, interpreters and 
resources. (#7 in resolution) 
 

4. Examine rates of API access to city’s small business relief and development programs 
and partner with organizations such as the Asian Business Association to increase access 
among API small business owners. (#8 in resolution) 
 

5. Partner with the City’s Office of Race & Equity, CBOs, cultural institutions, the Mayor’s 
Asian Pacific Islander Advisory Board, and K-12 schools on:  

 Bystander/upstander trainings; 
 Asian Pacific American Heritage Month celebrations;  
 Educational initiatives to uplift Asian American history and stories 

             (#9 in resolution)  
 

6. Collaborate with the City’s Immigrant Affairs Manager and community stakeholders to 
implement the Welcoming San Diego strategic plan, especially recommendations on 
inclusive access, public safety and civic engagement. 

 
 
This memo is written by Kent Lee (kent@pacarts.org) & Samuel Tsoi (worldview@gmail.com) of 
the San Diego API Coalition (sdapicoalition.org) for discussion at the April 21, 2021 public 
meeting of the Human Relations Commission. 

https://www.sandiego.gov/sites/default/files/r-313068.pdf
http://www.sdapicoalition.org/
http://www.sdapicoalition.org/
http://stopaapihate.org/
https://pacarts.org/sdapicoalition/api-resources/
mailto:kent@pacarts.org
mailto:worldview@gmail.com
http://sdapicoalition.org/


 
March 8, 2021 
 
Shana Hazan 
San Diego Human Relations Commission 
1200 Third Ave. 
Suite 916 
San Diego, CA 92101 
 
Dear Ms. Hazan, 
 
With the alarming trend of hate and intimidation directed against our AAPI neighbors since the onset of 
the COVID-19 pandemic, and especially the spike in violence against elderly AAPI citizens around 
California and the U.S. since the Jan. 6th insurrection at the Capitol, I’d like to ask the commission to 
increase its outreach to our local AAPI communities and related organizations throughout the city. 
 
Just as my neighbors and I in Mira Mesa are increasing our vigilance regarding anti-Asian violence and 
intimidation, I want to ensure the city is increasing its vigilance too. I’d like to suggest the commission 
consider a series of hearings on the epidemic of anti-Asian hate as soon as it’s safe to gather at city 
libraries and recreation centers for a thorough airing of local, and potentially unreported, incidents from 
neighborhood leaders and stakeholders. 
 
Similarly, I’d like to propose that the commission invite police, fire personnel, and other public safety 
services to be part of the dialogue to not only discuss specific hate incidents, but to consider the 
potential for cultural misunderstandings that may arise from language barriers or incomplete 
communication, which could discourage some elderly AAPI neighbors from reporting a hate-related, 
violent, or intimidating incident. 
 
As bad as the attack was on an elderly Filipino woman aboard the San Diego Trolley last month, there 
may have been dozens of additional incidents of hate, violence, and intimidation over the last year that 
have affected our AAPI neighbors and gone unreported, or unnoticed except by those involved. Stop 
AAPI Hate recorded over two dozen incidents of anti-Asian hate throughout the county in 2020 alone. 
 
This is an opportunity for the city, and the commission, to enable a forum on this important matter, and 
an opportunity for neighbors, policymakers, and city officials to discuss solutions as we maintain 
vigilance. Please let me know how I can assist in any of these efforts. Thank you for your kind 
consideration. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Tommy Hough 



3/5/2021 Stop Hate Crimes and Incidents | Human Relations Commission | City of San Diego Official Website

https://www.sandiego.gov/blog/stopping-hate-crimes-and-incidents-0 1/5

Under 18 U.S. Code § 249 - Hate crime acts, victims of hate crimes are protected under
United States and California law.

Hate crime simple de�nition:

"Crimes that are committed against individuals or groups or property based on the real or
perceived race, religion, gender, sexual orientation, disability, national origin, or ethnicity of the
victims. These personal characteristics acting as the motive for the crime perpetrator is what
distinguishes hate crimes from other crimes."

 

Learn more about hate crimes, hate incidents, and what you can do to stop hatred in
our community.  faq_about_hate_crimes_and_incidents.pdf
(//www.sandiego.gov/sites/default/�les/faq_about_hate_crimes_and_incidents_8.pdf)

 

This webpage has resources available in English, Spanish, Tagalog, Vietnamese and
Chinese (Traditional).

Please note that some materials will have documents translated into multiple languages on to
one PDF �le.

Human Relations Commission

Stop Hate Crimes and Incidents

https://www.sandiego.gov/sites/default/files/faq_about_hate_crimes_and_incidents_8.pdf


3/5/2021 Stop Hate Crimes and Incidents | Human Relations Commission | City of San Diego Official Website

https://www.sandiego.gov/blog/stopping-hate-crimes-and-incidents-0 2/5

ADVOCACY KITS:                                                                 

 advocacy_kit_english.pdf
(//www.sandiego.gov/sites/default/�les/advocacy_kit_english_1.pdf)

 advocacy_kit_spanish.pdf
(//www.sandiego.gov/sites/default/�les/advocacy_kit_spanish_1.pdf)

 advocacy_kit_tagalog.pdf
(//www.sandiego.gov/sites/default/�les/advocacy_kit_tagalog_5.pdf)

 advocacy_kit_vietnamese.pdf
(//www.sandiego.gov/sites/default/�les/advocacy_kit_vietnamese_2.pdf)

 advocacy_kit_traditional_chinese_xuan_chuan_zi_liao_dai_.pdf
(//www.sandiego.gov/sites/default/�les/advocacy_kit_traditional_chinese_xuan_chuan_zi_liao_d
ai__2.pdf)

 

COMMUNITY ACTIVITY GUIDES:

Paint Out Day

 paint_out_day_english.pdf
(//www.sandiego.gov/sites/default/�les/paint_out_day_english_1.pdf)

 paint_out_day_guide_spanish.pdf
(//www.sandiego.gov/sites/default/�les/paint_out_day_guide_spanish_2.pdf)

 paint_out_day_guide_tagalog.pdf
(//www.sandiego.gov/sites/default/�les/paint_out_day_guide_tagalog_2.pdf)

   paint_out_day_guide_vietnamese.pdf
(//www.sandiego.gov/sites/default/�les/paint_out_day_guide_vietnamese_4.pdf)

 paint_out_day_traditional_chinese_tu_qu_de_yi_tian_.pdf
(//www.sandiego.gov/sites/default/�les/paint_out_day_traditional_chinese_tu_qu_de_yi_tian__3.
pdf)

Run/Walk Against Hate

 organization_guide_run_walk_against_hate-1.pdf
(//www.sandiego.gov/sites/default/�les/organization_guide_run_walk_against_hate-1_1.pdf)

 

*POSTERS (PDF):

https://www.sandiego.gov/sites/default/files/advocacy_kit_english_1.pdf
https://www.sandiego.gov/sites/default/files/advocacy_kit_spanish_1.pdf
https://www.sandiego.gov/sites/default/files/advocacy_kit_tagalog_5.pdf
https://www.sandiego.gov/sites/default/files/advocacy_kit_vietnamese_2.pdf
https://www.sandiego.gov/sites/default/files/advocacy_kit_traditional_chinese_xuan_chuan_zi_liao_dai__2.pdf
https://www.sandiego.gov/sites/default/files/paint_out_day_english_1.pdf
https://www.sandiego.gov/sites/default/files/paint_out_day_guide_spanish_2.pdf
https://www.sandiego.gov/sites/default/files/paint_out_day_guide_tagalog_2.pdf
https://www.sandiego.gov/sites/default/files/paint_out_day_guide_vietnamese_4.pdf
https://www.sandiego.gov/sites/default/files/paint_out_day_traditional_chinese_tu_qu_de_yi_tian__3.pdf
https://www.sandiego.gov/sites/default/files/organization_guide_run_walk_against_hate-1_1.pdf


3/5/2021 Stop Hate Crimes and Incidents | Human Relations Commission | City of San Diego Official Website

https://www.sandiego.gov/blog/stopping-hate-crimes-and-incidents-0 3/5

10 Principles for Fighting Hate by The Southern Law Poverty Center (SLPC)

Title page, Principles 1 & 2:  slpc_10_principles_to_�ght_hate_title_principles1-2.pdf
(//www.sandiego.gov/sites/default/�les/slpc_10_principles_to_�ght_hate_title_principles1-2.pdf)

Principles 3-7:  slpc_principles_3-7.pdf
(//www.sandiego.gov/sites/default/�les/slpc_principles_3-7_5.pdf)

Principles 8-10:  slpc_principles_8-10.pdf
(//www.sandiego.gov/sites/default/�les/slpc_principles_8-10_3.pdf)

 

Building Cultural Competency (SLPC)  slpc_building_cultural_competency_posters-1.pdf
(//www.sandiego.gov/sites/default/�les/slpc_building_cultural_competency_posters-1.pdf)

5 Steps for Parents & Guardians to Promote Tolerance (SLPC) 
slpc_5_steps_for_parents_guardians_for_promoting_tolerance.pdf
(//www.sandiego.gov/sites/default/�les/slpc_5_steps_for_parents_guardians_for_promoting_tol
erance.pdf)

*The posters on this webpage are original designs, but the content is from the Southern
Poverty Law Center

 

 

                              Be inspired to promote tolerance and make a di�erence!

https://www.sandiego.gov/sites/default/files/slpc_10_principles_to_fight_hate_title_principles1-2.pdf
https://www.sandiego.gov/sites/default/files/slpc_principles_3-7_5.pdf
https://www.sandiego.gov/sites/default/files/slpc_principles_8-10_3.pdf
https://www.sandiego.gov/sites/default/files/slpc_building_cultural_competency_posters-1.pdf
https://www.sandiego.gov/sites/default/files/slpc_5_steps_for_parents_guardians_for_promoting_tolerance.pdf


3/5/2021 Stop Hate Crimes and Incidents | Human Relations Commission | City of San Diego Official Website

https://www.sandiego.gov/blog/stopping-hate-crimes-and-incidents-0 4/5

     

 



3/5/2021 Stop Hate Crimes and Incidents | Human Relations Commission | City of San Diego Official Website

https://www.sandiego.gov/blog/stopping-hate-crimes-and-incidents-0 5/5

      



CHIEF RACE & EQUITY OFFICER
A Bold & Progressive Leadership Opportunity • Join Us and Make a Difference!



The City of San Diego, California is conducting a national search for a Chief of Race & Equity. This position will 
lead the newly created Office of Race and Equity, a City department. Established in June 2020, the Office of 
Race and Equity is a deliberate step toward advancing racial and social equity in the City of San Diego. Through 
strategic initiatives grounded in best practices, this position will play a pivotal role in ensuring equity, creating 
new policies and driving reforms in existing policies, procedures, and practices in City employment, City 
services, and City culture.
The Office of Race & Equity is responsible for providing education and technical support to City staff, local 
law enforcement, and elected officials, and implementing programs and policies in order to sustainably 
reduce and eliminate systemic racism and barriers to fair and just distribution of resources, access, and 
opportunity.
The Chief of Race & Equity shall be the visionary leader, advocate and catalyst to advance equity and social 
justice initiatives that achieve results.

THE CITY AND ITS GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE:
With more than 1.4 million people, the City of San Diego is the eighth largest city in the United States and the 
second largest in California. The City of San Diego’s strong economy, diverse population, great educational 
institutions, unsurpassed quality of life, and world-renowned location makes it the ideal place to work, live, 
and play. With its great weather, miles of sandy beaches, and major attractions, San Diego has something to 
offer for everyone.
The City’s Mission, as found in our Strategic Plan, is “To Effectively Serve and Support Our Communities.” 
The City’s Vision is “A World-Class City for All.” Our core values are Integrity, Service, People, and Excellence.
As one of the region’s largest employers, the City of San Diego has a combined Fiscal Year 2021 operating 
and capital budget of approximately $4.0 billion and employs approximately 11,800 highly dedicated 
employees. Additional information about the City of San Diego can be obtained on the City’s website:  
www.sandiego.gov.
Incorporated in 1850, San Diego is a charter city under a Strong Mayor form of government. The Mayor is the 
chief executive officer of the City, with the duty to oversee the administrative affairs of the City. The Mayor 
proposes the City budget, appoints City department heads, and has veto authority over most legislative and 
budgetary matters. The nine-member City Council has legislative authority in the City, including approving the 
City’s annual budget, adopting local laws, and setting public policy. The Mayor is elected by voters citywide, 
while Councilmembers are elected by those voters living in the district served by each Councilmember. The 
Mayor and Councilmembers serve four-year terms and are limited to two consecutive terms.

CITY OF SAN DIEGO SEEKS 
CHIEF OF RACE & EQUITY



THE DEPARTMENT:  
The Office of Race & Equity will achieve the City’s goals of:

1. Ending racial disparities within City government by advancing fairness in hiring and promotions,
promoting greater opportunities and inclusion in City contracting, and providing City services
equitably to all City residents.

2. Prioritizing racial and social justice practices in the City’s outreach programs and civic engagement
approach to improve access to City government.

3. Prioritizing health and economic success for communities of color and low- to moderate-income
communities.

Key priorities of the department include:

1. Collaborate with the Performance & Analytics Department to conduct a citywide  assessment of the 
City’s services and programs to identify disparities and gaps in services.

2. Create a city-wide racial equity action plan that encompasses equity tools and provides a blueprint of 
systems and structures for each department to operationalize equity. The equity tool will be a 
proactive marker to be used to identify clear and measurable outcomes while identifying the benefit 
or burden of decisions made by City leaders and strive to implement city-wide inclusion.

3. Advise/coach and hold departments accountable for using the equity tool to identify issues of 
systemic racism, evaluate department policies and procedures and provide training on 
operationalizing equity to eliminate systemic racism.

4. In conjunction with the Equal Opportunity Contracting Program and the Citizens Equal Opportunity 
Commission, work to increase opportunities for women-owned, minority-owned, disadvantaged- 
owned, and disadvantaged veteran-owned businesses in City contracting.

5. Coordinate with City boards and commissions working on equity, racial justice and law enforcement
issues, including the Human Relations Commission, the Community Review Board on Police
Practices and the Citizens Advisory Board on Police/Community Relations to solicit community
input and recommendations for meeting the City’s goals of achieving race equity and eliminating
systemic racism.



THE POSITION:
The Chief leads the City’s Office of Race & Equity team in driving 
the Citywide strategy to advance and implement diversity, 
equity, and inclusion (DEI) practices into the culture and provision
of all City programs, services and policies. The position is the expert 
technical advisor on citywide matters of equity and disparities. The 
Chief will collaborate with other city department directors and 
employees to facilitate an organizational culture that institutionalizes the 
use of an equity lens designed and implemented to address systemic 
disparities existing in the delivery of city services and policies. The Chief of 
Race & Equity is an at-will, executive management-level position and the 
administrative head of the Office of Race & Equity. This position is appointed by, and 
may be removed at-will by, the Mayor. This Chief is the appointing authority of all personnel in 
the Department.

A gifted communicator and diplomat, this Chief holds up a mirror to the organization, facilitates efforts to 
improve, and holds internal stakeholders accountable for implementation. The Chief is a strong listener and 
trust-builder, and able to build a robust network of partnerships across the organization and community in 
order to achieve DEI goals.

KEY AREAS OF RESPONSIBILITY:
The Chief of Race & Equity is responsible for performing those duties and functions assigned and directed by 
the Mayor and/or Chief Operating Officer to meet the goals and objectives of the department, including:

1. Partnering with internal and external stakeholders to define the future vision for the City and engage in
strategic planning work for 2021.

2. Ensuring that the City’s long-term (4-year) and near-term (annual and 2022) plans are fully reflective of
and inspired by a race and equity lens and reflects the City’s equity identity.

3. Collaborating with the Performance & Analytics Department and the Office of the Independent Budget
Analyst (IBA), develop and monitor DEI key performance indicators (KPI's);

analyze and share observations regarding programmatic practice and 
innovation, and organizational culture and practice.
3. Partnering with the internal departments to ensure continuous

learning and sustainable improvement regarding DEI KPI’s, metrics,
and organizational culture that align with the City’s racial equity plan.

4. Collaborating with the Human Resources Department to create
and refine equity-focused leadership development curriculum and
educational opportunities, and provide career advancement
pathways for people of color, women, and LGBTQ+ staff as well as
focus on inclusive recruitment and retention strategies.

5. Collaborating with experts to stay current on DEI research and
best practices to evaluate City policy including but not limited to: 
homelessness, health, housing, infrastructure, economic development, 

recruiting and retention, contracting, and deployment of city services and 
recommend relevant adaptation to enhance City services, practices,  
             programs, and policies.



6. Develop consistent internal and external communication and feedback
mechanisms to ensure the City is able to identify, discuss, and address
equity issues impacting our clients, residents, and staff.

7. Using an equity lens, inform budget decisions and propose policy that
advances and supports equitable service delivery to the community.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:
1. A BA/BS in a related field or commensurate experience to a bachelor's degree.
2. 5-7 years of experience advocating for and implementing change within a

multi-cultural environment.
3. 5 years of experience developing and implementing diversity, equity,

and inclusion programs.
4. Cross-cultural competence and excellent analytical, writing, public speaking, and facilitation skills

with demonstrated understanding of cultural values and norms of various communities, particularly 
communities of color, LGTBQ+ and recovery communities.

5. Knowledge of public policy advocacy, including engagement of affected communities, policy 
development, coalition building, and strategic communications.

6. 3 years of managerial experience, with a demonstrated track record of leading collaborative teams that 
effectively develop and implement trainings and other programs that foster organizational change.

7. Experience working in a public agency is strongly preferred.

IDEAL CANDIDATE:
The ideal candidate for Chief of Race & Equity will be an innovative, data-driven, visionary and 
transformational leader with outstanding people and management skills. The successful candidate will 
have demonstrated background and expertise in the following: 

1. Proven ability to engage with diverse staff and leadership to promote trust, collaboration, and 
partnership between departments and levels of leadership.

2. Demonstrated track record in challenging and influencing peers to approach all work with a race and 
equity lens.

3. Experience developing and monitoring indicators of organizational culture and engaging
employees and senior leadership to create organizational change.

4. Deep content knowledge of the research base and best practices for
organizations striving to become more diverse, equitable, and inclusive.

5. Strong interpersonal skills; able to quickly establish credibility to develop
and manage productive relationships with internal and external stakeholders

and agencies.
6. Proven track record of success with community building and authentic 
engagement with communities of color and LGBTQ+ communities.
7. Politically astute, but apolitical, highly sophisticated and culturally competent 
in working effectively with diverse stakeholders in highly political environments.



8. Ability to communicate in languages other than English is beneficial.
9. Strong management and decisive leadership skills with a style that promotes transparency.

10. High emotional intelligence with a high level of integrity with a set of values that include compassion,
collaboration, and service excellence.

11. A passion for advancing racial equity and social justice solutions.
12. An understanding of systemic and institutional racial bias.
13. Experience operationalizing an initiative and/or department.

APPLICATION PROCESS
To be considered, please electronically submit your 1) resume, 2) cover letter and 3) a list of three 
professional references to ceo.sandiego@thehawkinscompany.com by April 16, 2021. The Letter of interest 
should highlight relevant work experience and qualifications for this position. Resumes received by April 16, 
2021 will receive first consideration. The position is open until filled.

For additional information or questions, please contact Ms. Brett Byers at 323-403-8279, brett@ 
thehawkinscompany.com or Tisa Jones at 213-309-7984, tisa@thehawkinscompany.com.

THE HAWKINS COMPANY
8939 S. Sepulveda Blvd., #110-216
Los Angeles, CA 90045
www.thehawkinscompany.com

The City of San Diego has an active Equal Opportunity/ADA Program for employment and vigorously 
supports diversity in the workplace.

MANAGEMENT COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS:
The salary for this position is $150,000-$200,000 depending on experience and qualifications.

The successful candidate will be eligible for participation in the City’s Flexible 
Benefits Plan that offers several optional benefit plans or a taxable cash 
option; $50,000 in City-paid life insurance; paid annual leave accruing 
at 22 days per year for the 1st through the 15th year of service. For 
further information, please contact the Risk Management Department 
at (619) 236-6600. Retirement benefits for this unclassified position 
depend on the candidate’s eligible status (new hire, rehire, etc.). To 
learn more about employee benefits, please review the Benefits 
Summary for Unclassified Employees https://www.sandiego.gov/

sites/default/files/benefits-summary-unclassified-employees.
pdf. Some benefits currently offered to employees may be 

modified in the future.



1200 Third Avenue,  Sui te  1316,  San Diego CA 92101 
Humanresources@sandiego.gov

 HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT



Mayor Gloria’s
Empowerment Policy Plan 

for San Diego’s 
Black Community



I’m pleased to present to you my “Empowerment Policy Plan for San Diego’s Black 
Community.” For too long, deep-rooted systemic errors have existed within our 
nation’s framework. This has created a historical documentation of how our Black 
communities have been left disenfranchised and disregarded. As Mayor, I intend to 
change that. 

This plan serves as a framework for how we intend to tackle some of our Black 
community’s most pressing issues. With the help of my Black Advisory Group and the 
public, we are ensuring that San Diego is a truly inclusive city for all people. This means 
rectifying wrongs, listening to the Black community and creating solutions that will 
establish and sustain our Black community for generations to come.

ABOUT THE PLAN
Connecting Back to Work SD 

with the Central San Diego 
Black Chamber of Commerce  

(ACCOMPLISHED) 

The appointment of Donna 
DeBerry, President & CEO of 

Central San Diego Black Chamber 
of Commerce to Small Business 

Advisory Board 
(ACCOMPLISHED)

Reestablish the Community 
Reinvestment Review Advisory 

Committee 
(ONGOING) 

ECONOMICS
For far too long the Black community has been denied access to opportunity and economic 
justice. The City of San Diego will work to advance a more just and equitable economy by 
developing and implementing pathways for the Black community to be successful. This means 
that collectively, we should do everything we can to support economic mobility in the Black 
community. This includes everything from investing in the infrastructure in the neighborhoods 
that support  Black-owned businesses, to ensuring that workforce development programs are 
connecting the Black community to high-paying and high-growth jobs. It is our responsibility 
to commit to racial equity and work to correct these systemic inequities impacting the Black 
community. 

Investing in sidewalks, streetlights and other 
innovative infrastructure improvements that 
enhance the quality of life of underserved 
communities (ONGOING) 

Invest in a cannabis equity study to 
develop a social equity program 
(MEDIUM TERM) 

Expand workforce development programs in 
underserved communities 
(MEDIUM TERM) 



H
O

U
SI

N
G

Establish Middle-Income Housing 
Trust Fund, financed by local 

anchor institutions, to provide 
capital necessary to build 

middle-income housing 
(SHORT TERM)

Brought homeless services under 
the Mayor’s office
(ACCOMPLISHED)

Homeless outreach reform
(ACCOMPLISHED)

Implement driven decision making 
and transparency/accountability 

(SHORT TERM)

POLICE REFORM

Signed the Obama 
Foundation’s Reimagining 

Policing Pledge 
(ACCOMPLISHED) 

Joined the Mayors Against 
Illegal Guns Coalition  

(ACCOMPLISHED)

Appropriately fund and 
faithfully implement the 

independent Commission 
on Police Practices 

(SHORT TERM)

Review the types and 
categories of calls 

dispatched to the San 
Diego Police Department. 

(SHORT TERM)

Eliminate existing gang 
injunctions 

(SHORT TERM)

While San Diego is one of the safest big cities in the United 
States, we still have more work to do to ensure that all 
people feel safe in their communities. This is especially 
true for the Black community. The City of San Diego must 
do more to build trust between the San Diego Police 
Department and the Black community so we can realize a 
community policing model that is safe, fair, and effective. 
In order to build this trust, the City must make a concerted 
effort to be accountable to the community, transparent 
in our decision-making, and open to dialogues that are 
difficult, but necessary. This means that we should do 
everything from revisiting our internal policies, training 
offerings, and hiring practices, to exploring big systemic 
changes to pretext stops, gang injunctions, and alternatives 
to police response. These reforms are no easy task, but they 
are worth our time and effort to ensure we keep the Black 
community safe. 

Ending homelessness is a moral imperative 
and is one of my top civic priorities. This 
is not acceptable. With leadership from 
the City and strong regional coordination, 
the City of San Diego will work with other 
agencies and service providers will keep 
San Diegans experiencing homelessness 
safe, offer services compassionately, 
and transition as many as possible into 

permanent supportive housing. 
The best strategy to ending chronic homelessness 
is to prevent people from losing their homes in the 
first place. During the COVID-19 pandemic, and in the 
recovery afterwards, keeping people safely housed is a 
top priority. In the first 100 days of my administration, 
the City of San Diego put a moratorium on evictions 
due to COVID-19 and jumpstarted an $83 million rent 
relief program for struggling tenants. However, we 
must do more to produce more affordable housing so 
more that just the wealthy can afford to live and work 
in San Diego. 

Explore policies that would 
limit the use of pretextual 

stops and consent searches 
(MEDIUM TERM) 

Explore alternatives to 
arrest for low-level offense. 

(MEDIUM TERM) 

Explore options that would 
limit the use of tear gas and 

other specialty munitions 
(MEDIUM TERM) 

Review police hiring 
practices to ensure we 

attract the best candidates 
(MEDIUM TERM)  

& HOMELESSNESS

Implement aggressive Housing 
First strategy (ONGOING)

Convene Intergovernmental 
Roundtable (SHORT TERM)

Coordinate/leverage regional 
funds, including MHSA dollars 
(SHORT TERM)

Implement City’s Homelessness 
Strategic Plan (ONGOING)

Amend the Parks Master 
Plan to increase community 
reinvestment (SHORT TERM)

Prioritize new housing 
construction in all 
neighborhoods, especially 
focused near transit and jobs 
(ONGOING)

Leverage local dollars with 
state and federal resources 
to incentivize more housing 
production (ONGOING)

Building homes that will be sold 
and rented to low/moderate 
income households (ONGOING) 

Identify slum landlords 
and hold them accountable 
(ONGOING) 

Implement controls for the 
procurement and use of 
military-grade weapons 

(SHORT TERM) 

Strengthen “unconscious” or 
“implicit bias” training for all 

officers 
(SHORT TERM)

Review the types and categories of 
calls dispatched to the San Diego 

Police Department
(SHORT TERM)

Adopt and implement the 
Surveillance and Privacy Advisory 

Board ordinances (SHORT TERM)

Remove the Office of Homeland 
Security as a program of the San 

Diego Police Department 
(SHORT TERM)



Evaluated and realized 
community choice 
energy 
(ACCOMPLISHED)

Implement and update the 
climate action plan 
(ONGOING/SHORT TERM)

Established the Climate Equity 
Fund to invest in programs and 
projects impacting underserved 
communities 
(ACCOMPLISHED)

EN
VI

RO
N

M
EN

TA
L

JUSTICE
Climate change impacts us 

all, but the most disparate of 
impacts are felt by communities 

of color. Many of these 
communities experience a lack of 

infrastructure such as, deficient 
park acreage, unimproved 

streets lacking pedestrian and 
bicycle improvements, and 

insufficient street lighting. This 
has caused communities like the 

Black community to be more 
susceptible to the impacts of 
climate change because the 
infrastructure and facilities 
needed to adapt are either 

inadequate or, in some cases, 
non-existent. The City of San 

Diego must correct this by making 
a concerted effort to invest in 

strategies that will help the Black 
community adapt to climate 

change and meet our Climate 
Action Plan goals. This that we 

should take action by redirecting 
City dollars to infrastructure 

projects that reduce greenhouse 
gas emissions in the community 

and encouraging Black 
households and businesses to 

transition to affordable and clean 
energy. 

EDUCATION

Partner with school districts to 
expand workforce development 

initiatives 
(MEDIUM TERM)

Youth Opportunity Pass -- a free 
bus pass that will give families 

and students safe options to get 
to school and work

(MEDIUM TERM)

We must recognize that there can be no recovery without first addressing the needs of children 
and families in the Black community. Education is a key part of this.  Ensuring that the next 
generation is properly prepared to continue building community  should be our priority. From 
infancy to college, access to programs and educational support need to be increased and 
sustained. This administration will focus on some of the barriers that exists for some of our 
youth and families within the Black community, such as transportation, and limited pipeline 
programming opportunities.  



HEALTH

Launched the City’s Mobile 
COVID Vaccination POD, held 
at Malcolm X library and the 
Municipal Gym in Balboa Park 
(ACCOMPLISHED & ONGOING) 

Prioritize safe reopening of 
schools and childcare before 
opening other sectors. 
(SHORT TERM) 

Scale up funding to keep 
childcare providers in business 
(SHORT TERM) 

Subsidize childcare for essential 
workers, others impacted by 
COVID-19
(SHORT TERM) 

Work with City Attorney’s Office 
and law enforcement to monitor 

compliance of public health 
orders and worker protections 
(ACCOMPLISHED & ONGOING)

Advocate for release of more 
detailed public health data 

(SHORT TERM)

Coordinate health interventions 
and reopening procedures with 

other regional jurisdictions 
(SHORT TERM)

Focus health resources in 
underserved communities 

where outbreaks have been 
especially deadly

(SHORT TERM)

Promote mental health 
resources through all 

City channels 
(SHORT TERM)

The COVID-19 pandemic has amplified the health disparities in the Black 
community. These disparities are at no fault of the community, but rather, 

the generations of inequities perpetuated by our healthcare, housing, 
economic, and educational systems. While healthcare is not a core function 
of the City of San Diego, we are committed to doing what we can to address 
health disparities in the recovery from COVID-19 and beyond. This includes 
coordinating vaccination events in the Black community, promoting mental 

health resources, and advocating for disaggregated and detailed public 
health data to better understand disparities in real time. San Diego’s 

communities should all be safe and healthy. These actions represent the 
launching pad that will address  our disparities. 



 

 
 
Statement Condemning Racially Motivated Hate Crimes Against Asian 
Americans and Pacific Islanders (AAPI) 
March 17, 2021 
 
To whom it may concern: 
 
The City of San Diego Human Relations Commission strongly condemns the killing of Asian 
American and Pacific Islander (AAPI) people at three attacks in the Atlanta area on March 16. 
 
Since the pandemic began a year ago, inflammatory and xenophobic rhetoric has put AAPI 
persons, families, communities, and businesses at risk. Over the last year we have seen the 
struggle of AAPI community members who had to not only keep themselves safe from the virus, 
but also faced increased violence and harassment fueled by prejudice and hatred.  
 
The mission of the Human Relations Commission (HRC) is to promote activities that foster 
mutual respect and understanding, protect basic human and civil rights, and create an atmosphere 
that promotes peaceful and harmonious relations among all members of the San Diego 
community. 
 
Therefore, the HRC strongly condemns extremism and all attacks, violence or hate crimes 
committed against individuals or groups or property based on the actual or perceived race, 
religion, gender, sexual orientation, disability, national origin, or ethnicity of the victims.  
 
“Acts of racism against the AAPI community contribute to a climate of intolerance, which harms 
the fabric of our multicultural society. We believe all people must be treated with fairness, 
tolerance, and acceptance – and stand in solidarity with our AAPI community, which should be 
recognized and valued as an integral part of America's ethnic diversity. We encourage the city of 
San Diego to strengthen its partnership with the AAPI community, and build bridges for 
understanding and acceptance, and advocate for those who often feel invisible and unheard.” said 
Shana Hazan, Chair of the Human Relations Commission. 
 
As a Commission, we work to ensure that San Diego is no place for hate. Any attack or violent 
crime against a member of our community directly contradicts our mission to foster and protect 
basic human and civil rights and create a safe San Diego for all residents.  
 
  
Shana Hazan 
Chair, San Diego Human Relations Commission 
 
 
The Human Relations Commission advises the Mayor and City Council on methods to assure 
that all city residents have equal access to economic, political, and educational opportunities 
and equal access to service protection and accommodation in all businesses and public agencies. 
  



 

Mayor Todd Gloria 

Civic Center Plaza 

San Diego, CA 92101 

February 25, 2021 

Dear Mayor Gloria, 

The Human Relations Commission strongly supports the establishment of an Office of Child and Youth 

Success within the City of San Diego along with a budget commitment of $350,000 to fund personnel and 

the development of a Master Plan for Child and Youth Success. 

This expression of support comes first and foremost from our collective desire to see San Diego reach its 

full potential in becoming a City where all who are born, grow up, come of age, and choose to raise a 

family here can thrive. 

We encourage you to follow the lead of other municipalities of similar size and composition which have 

an Office of Child and Youth Success strategically located within the Mayor’s Office. This would enable 

the City of San Diego to leverage intergovernmental and community partnerships. 

The City of San Diego provides many services and support for children, youth, and their families across 

its multiple departments, and has linkages to other public agencies such as school districts, and child and 

youth development program providers. However, these efforts would be more effective and cost-efficient 

with greater coordination.  

The proposed office could access technical assistance from the National League of Cities and other 

similar organizations, while becoming more competitive for state, federal, and foundation grants to 

support its mission. 

The need for an Office of Child and Youth Success is more important than ever as we grapple with how 

to support the thousands of families whose lives have been upended by the health and economic 

devastation of COVID. 

On behalf of the Human Relations Commission, I would like to express my appreciation for your 

consideration of our requests. Through the proposed Office of Child and Youth Success, San Diego can 

make great strides to advance equity and improve the lives of families across our great city. 

Sincerely,  

 

 

Shana Hazan 

Chair, San Diego Human Relations Commission 
 

 

Cc:  Council President Jen Campbell  

        Councilmember Joe LaCava 

        Councilmember Stephen Whitburn  

        Councilmember Monica Montgomery-Steppe 

        Councilmember Marni Von Wilpert 

        Councilmember Chris Cate 

        Councilmember Vivian Moreno  

Councilmember Sean Elo-Rivera 

Councilmember Raul Campillo 


	04.27.21 HRC Agenda
	HRC Meeting Minutes_02.17.21
	KPBS_San Diegos Spike Mirrors National Trend
	kpbs.org
	San Diego's Spike In Hate Crimes Against Asian Americans Mirrors National Trend | KPBS


	ABC10_Attack on elderly Filipino woman on San Diego trolley
	U-T_AAPI Racism and Xenophobia
	R-2021-343_Unsigned
	Stop AAPI Hate _ Human Relations Commission _ City of San Diego Official Website
	Letter_to_Human_Relations_Commission_030821
	Memo City HRC on Anti-Asian hate
	Resources for Asian Pacific Islander communities — Pacific Arts Movement
	HRC_Stop Hate Crimes and Incidents
	Chief Race and Equity Officer Recruitment Brochure
	MTG Empowerment Policy Plan for Black Community
	HRC Letter Condemning AAPI Killings_3.17.21
	Statement Condemning Racially Motivated Hate Crimes Against Asian Americans and Pacific Islanders (AAPI)

	Office of Child and Youth Success_Letter of Support_Human Relations Commission_2.25.21_PDF

	04NzI0OTNhYzFhLTg0MjAwNzI5AA==: 
	button1: 



